
 
100 RIVEREDGE ROAD TENAFLY, NEW JERSEY 07670 

 

 

THPC Minutes of September 8, 2011 
 

Chairman David Wall called the meeting to order at 8:10 P.M. and read the Open Public 
Meetings Act. 
 
Open Public Meetings Act 
 
In compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act, P.L. 1975, Chapter 231, the notice 
requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Meeting dates for the year are confirmed at the Annual Meeting, and posted on the public 
bulletin board in the lobby of the Municipal Center and published in the Press Journal and The 
Record within the first 10 days of the New Year. 
 
Copies of all revised or additional meeting notices are sent via fax to the Press Journal, The 
Record, Suburbanite and Northern Valley News and are posted on the public bulletin board in 
the lobby of the Municipal Center. 
 

Roll Call: 
Present: Chairman David Wall, Rita Heller, Don Merino, Karen Neus and New Member:  Sereno 
Danese 
Excused:  Mario Turchi, Paul Stefanowicz 
 
Swearing In of New Member 
 
At this point in the proceeding, Chairman Wall welcomed Sereno Danese and swore him in as a 
Member of the Tenafly Historical Preservation Commission.  Mr. Danese’s left hand was on the 
Holy Bible with his right hand raised. 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness  
 
Michael McCarthy, owner of 183 Serpentine Road, after being sworn in by Chairman Wall, 
spoke with the Members about a major application he wishes to bring before the Zoning Board 
of Adjustment, but is presenting his case to the HPC first to get their input on the contemplated 
application. 
 
HPC Secretary Karen Neus said all forms have been properly completed and certified to HPC 
all was complete. People within 200 feet of the aforementioned property have been notified by 
Certified Mail.  Mr. McCarthy had copies of publication of notice and receipts. 



Mr. McCarthy wishes to construct a detached 2-car garage in the front of his property, which is 
part of the Atwood Historic District.  His sketches are done in a historic nature, using the roofline 
of the Tenafly Train Station as a basis for the proposed garage.  Said garage would sit in front 
of property because there is no back yard.  If placed near the house, garage would be in front of 
bay windows.  His neighbor has bay windows that would also look out onto the garage.  Don 
Merino asked if Mike had applied to Zoning Board.  Mike said Zoning Board sent him to HPC 
first, and he will need two variances.   
 
Mike said it is a 3-story house with mansard roof.  The third floor has 4 bedrooms.  He said to 
put garage anywhere else on property would detract from the house.  Don asked if water 
coming down East Hill Court would add water to driveway.  Mike said a lot of water comes down 
now, DPW put in a bump.  Dave asked if Mike was the garage designer.  Mike said no, he 
would hire architect after approvals from HPC and ZB.   
 
Karen Neus and Rita Heller liked his newly renovated porch.  He had wanted a mansard roof on 
the garage, but it is not possible.  Don asked if Mike had selected the color, windows, materials 
or shingles yet.  Mike said materials would be wood, shingles would be green and 
black/appropriate to scale; he’d employ an architect.  Karen said the design has to be on paper 
and stamped by architect.   The house has vinyl siding; shutters are wood with white vinyl siding 
trim.  Karen said colors were approved previously and HPC needs to see new design.  Dave 
said HPC can approve with condition Mike get final approval from Chairman Dave Wall.  Karen 
said Building Department needs Certificate of Appropriateness from HPC.  Dave said applicant 
has something in mind that reflects railroad station.  Dave said HPC can go forward, drawings 
are rudimentary enough.  Don said more detail was needed on drawings; perhaps applicant 
could peruse books or other sources.  Mike said he’d come back.  Don asked if Mike had 
certified plot plan and survey, which the Zoning Board will require.  Don said it would be 
precedent setting in approving before reviewing the architectural drawing.  Dave said he likes 
the triangle (photograph #2) and faux windows, which can be beautiful.  Mike said he has 
Atwood’s book, and is not expecting green light approval this evening.  Dave said he liked the 
garage doors, but two sides of garage are different, which might deter or have a negative 
marketability.  Mike said he’d make the windows identical.  Karen said there would be no light 
from north side, and suggested making it symmetrical.  Dave said perhaps a semi-circular door, 
but put it on the back side.  Mike went over his survey and plot plan with HPC, he’s removing 
the front walk and curved driveway. 
 
Dave asked if the member of the public wished to speak about the application for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness at 183 Serpentine Road.  He declined. 
 
Motion to approve application is granted for Certificate of Appropriateness contingent 
upon final approval of architectural plans made by Dave Wall; seconded by Sereno 
Danese.  So carried with one abstention by Don Merino. 
 
Dave congratulated Karen on her daughter, Nora’s, picture in Suburbanite and Bergen 
Magazine as model for Academy of the Holy Angels.   

 
Guidelines from T. Robins Brown 
Dave said HPC should pay $75-150 for nine black and white copies of T.R. Brown’s 
copy of Guidelines.  Dave will deliver them to Members.  Please make edits in your own 
copy.  Try not to raise any questions, which would create more delay.  See if one of the 
other members has an answer to your question. 
 



Karen said she printed 10 copies of Guidelines from two CD’s, which contained the 
main body of Guidelines.  End of Guidelines was much of “how to” or “what is”.  Don 
said second section has good examples of windows, overhangs, etc.  Karen asked if 
HPC wants all 85 pages printed.  Dave wants it in front of him when reviewing. 
 
Motion to approve spending $75 to $150 for nine black and white copies of 
Guidelines made by Dave Wall; seconded by Don Merino.  So carried. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Motion to adjourn made by Dave Wall; seconded by Karen Neus.  So carried. 
 
     Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
     Deborah L. Alvarez, Secretary to HPC 


